BOGOR GOALS PROGRESS REPORT GUIDELINES

I. PURPOSE

The Bogor Goals Progress Report Guidelines will be implemented for reviewing 21 economies’ progress towards achieving free and open trade and investment by 2020.

II. RATIONALE FOR A REVISED MECHANISM 

In Montana, in May 2011, Senior Officials (SOM) endorsed recommendations prepared by the Committee of Trade and Investment (CTI) for a more robust mechanism to track progress towards the Bogor Goals. Background information can be found at: 2011/SOM2/021anx2. 
III. BOGOR GOALS PROGRESS REPORT GUIDELINES
(a) Format of the Individual Action Plan (IAP)  

· Economies will report on the IAP Template (annex 1) new trade and investment policies and procedures and the improvements planned for the remaining areas to fill the gap in moving closer to achieving the Bogor Goals. If policy settings remain the same from one reporting period to the next, then there is no need to collect and repeat the same information. 2010 economies
 might give emphasis to those areas where shortcomings were highlighted in the Leaders' Statement on 2010 Bogor Goals Assessment.  

· The areas to be reported will be based on the Osaka Action Agenda plus those added afterwards: 

· Tariffs

· Non-tariff measures 

· Services 

· Investment

· Standards and conformance 

· Customs procedures

· Intellectual property 

· Competition policy

· Government procurement

· Deregulation/regulatory review

· World Trade Organization (WTO) obligations including rules of origin

· Dispute mediation

· Mobility of business people

· Official websites that gather economies´ information
· Transparency

· Regional Trade Agreements / Free Trade Agreements (RTAs/FTAs)
· Other voluntary reporting areas 
· Economies will describe, in brief points only, significant new developments under each chapter heading. The information provided should be succinct but sufficient for the reader to understand the outline of the measure being described. Refer to the IAP reporting templates revised in 2004 together with 2000 APEC IAP Format Guidelines as guidance for reporting on each issue area.  
· Wherever possible entries should include a reference point (website, document, contact address, etc.) where further information can be obtained.

(b) Reporting from the Policy Support Unit  

· The Policy Support Unit (PSU) will prepare a short one- to two-page report with key highlights on members’ main achievements and remaining areas for improvement in the year of review. This would include information setting out the prevailing situation of trade and investment liberalization and facilitation of the economies, and use, where possible, indicators to facilitate the assessment. Economies would have the opportunity to examine the PSU’s report ahead of the SOM discussion, preferably with a few months’ leeway to ensure that each economy has sufficient time to review the report, make comments and highlight any factual errors, if any. Senior Officials will also have an opportunity to respond to the PSU’s report at their meeting, and also pose questions to each other, before it is finalized and made public as an independent report by PSU.
· In response to ABAC’s recommendation, the PSU will also prepare a “Dashboard” to complement the brief report abovementioned. 
(c) IAP Peer Review Process 

Regular Senior Officials’ review 

· Economies will be reviewed by Senior Officials in: 2012, 2014, and 2018.  In each previous year, the CTI will table for SOM’s endorsement the schedule to prepare the IAP submission and PSU report, taking into account the calendar for that APEC’s year.

· For 2012, economies will submit their templates by SOM1, February 2012. Senior Officials will discuss the brief reports prepared by the PSU by SOM2, June/July 2012.

Second-term review 

· Economies will be assessed in 2016, as a second term review. 

· 2010 economies might give emphasis to those areas where shortcomings were highlighted in the Leaders' Statement on 2010 Bogor Goals Assessment. 

· The host economy in 2016 supported by the APEC Secretariat and the PSU will lead the assessment based on the information provided in the IAP Template, and also information setting out the prevailing situation of trade and investment liberalization and facilitation of the economies, and use, where possible, indicators to facilitate the assessment. 
· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU could complement this assessment by using, where appropriate, data from the World Trade Organization, International Monetary Fund and other respectable sources, considering that data could be available for tariffs, but similar information for non-tariff measures, services and investment might be less visible.

Final Assessment 

· In 2020, economies will undertake a final assessment toward the achievement of the Bogor Goals. 

· The template prepared by Japan in 2010 could be used as the basis for the evaluation, to be consistent as much as possible with the 2010 assessment. 

· The host economy in 2020 supported by the APEC Secretariat, the PSU will lead the assessment based on the individual IAP reports and information provided in the abovementioned templates. 

· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU could complement this assessment by using, where appropriate, data from the World Trade Organization or other international organizations.

(d) Public Access to the IAP Information 
· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU would make the APEC-IAP website more user-friendly as well as improve its functionality, among other measures: i) the IAP Template might be divided by chapters, so users can download only the section of their interest; and ii) to include a point of contact in the APEC Secretariat to attend requests for further information. Additionally, visits to the website could be tracked. 
· The IAP Template submitted by economies and the report prepared by the PSU will be made publicly available on the internet. 
	Individual Action Plan Update for [Peru] for [2016]

	
Highlights of recent policy developments which indicate how [economy] is progressing towards the Bogor Goals and key challenges it faces in its efforts to meet the Goals. 

	




	IAP Chapter (and Sub-Chapter and Section Heading, if any) 
	Improvements made since  [2014] IAP 
	Further Improvements Planned 

	Tariffs
	Tariffs

Peru adopted the Harmonized System 2012 on January 1st, 2012. The current Peruvian Customs Tariff has 7,554 lines and its structure has three tariff levels: 0%, 6% and 11%.

In 2016:

(1) MFN applied tariff (simple average): 2.2% 

(2) MFN Applied Tariff Agriculture (Simple Average): 2.8% 

(3) MFN Applied Tariff Non- Agriculture (Simple Average): 1.5%

(4) Number of product lines with zero-tariff: 70.3% of total tariff schedule.

(5) Zero tariff imports represented 73.7% of total imports in 2015.
(6) The number of product lines with MNF tariff rates greater than or equal to 11% was 9% of total tariff schedule.

(7) Non-Ad Valorem Product Lines represented 0.6% of total tariff schedule.
(8) Non-Ad Valorem Imports represented 3.2% of total imports in 2015.
(9) Transparency in tariff regime: Tariff Policy Guidelines approved by Ministerial Resolution Number 005-2006-EF/15 and published on January 15th 2006. These Guidelines can be found at www.mef.gob.pe
	 

	Website for further information:  
	www.mincetur.gob.pe
www.mef.gob.pe 
	www.mef.gob.pe

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Angela GUERRA (aguerra@mincetur.gob.pe) 
	

	Non-Tariff Measures
Non-tariff measures include but are not restricted to quantitative import/export restrictions/prohibitions, import/export levies, minimum import prices, discretionary import/export licensing, voluntary export restraints and export subsidies
	· Import licensing: 0

· Quantitative import restrictions / prohibitions:  used road motor vehicles for cargo and passenger transportation; used clothing and footwear “for commercial purposes”; used engines, components and spare parts for road vehicles; used goods, machinery or equipment that use radioactive sources. 

· Import levies: The Value Added Tax (Impuesto General a las Ventas, IGV) of 16% is applied to 7,148 tariff lines. Additional excise tax (Impuesto Selectivo al Consumo, ISC) is applied to the import of certain goods such as fuels, vehicles, spirits, beer, aerated beverages, tobacco, and cigarettes.

· Export subsidies: 0

· Peru does not apply other non-tariff measures.


	

	Website for further information:  
	www.sunat.gob.pe/operatividadaduanera/index.html 

www.mincetur.gob.pe
www.mef.gob.pe
	

	Contact point for further details: 
	Ms. Angela GUERRA (aguerra@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Services
	Financial Services

Stock Market Regulation

In September 2015, the Regulation of the Operations in the Peruvian Stock Market was modified (Resolution N° 021-2015-SMV/01). This new Regulation allows the use of Algorithmic Trading in the negotiation of stocks. This kind of Trading is allowed and used by many investors in different stock markets.

Investment fund

In December 2014, the Superintendency of the Securities Market enacted the new regulation of the Administrative companies and Investments Funds (Resolution N° 29-2014-SMV/01). This new regulation allows to employ international managers for the local investment funds.

ETF

In 2015, the Superintendency of Securities Markets enacted the Exchange Trade Fund (ETF) Regulation (Resolution N° 005-2015-SMV/01). This Regulation allows the cross listing of foreign ETF in the Lima Stock Exchange. In addition, it gives investors more investment options.

Factoring: 

In February 2015, the Law N° 30308 was enacted. This Law looks to promote micro-, small and medium-sized enterprises financing. 

Leasing: 

In July 2015, the Legislative Decree 1177 was enacted with the objective to boost the real state market. This law allows the users to purchase a house through a leasing contract. 

Telecommunication Services 

International roaming:

Peru is working on international roaming issues with Colombia and Bolivia under the framework of Bilateral Agreements, endorsed by Leaders. 

In the case of Colombia, the last agreement considers to continue efforts to reduce roaming charges to the users and starts the assessment of possible regulatory measures to promote reduction of wholesale prices; while in the case of Bolivia, the commitment is to take actions to improve the information to users and reduce international roaming rates between the two countries.

Net neutrality:

In order to provide predictability to stakeholders about net neutrality, under the framework of the Law for Promotion of Broadband and Construction of the National Fiber Optic Backbone (Law N° 29904), a Draft Regulation on Net Neutrality was published for comments in September, 2015.

Passive Infrastructure:

The Rule that Regulates the Registration of Passive Infrastructure Providers for Public Mobile Services was approved by Supreme Decree N° 024-2014-MTC, issued in December, 2014. The law aims to regulate the registration procedure of natural or juridical persons in the Register of Passive Infrastructure Providers for Public Mobile Services.

Number Portability:

A modification of the Regulation for Fixed and Mobile Service Number Portability was approved by Resolution N° 151-2015-CD/OSIPTEL, issued in December, 2015. The Regulation aims to strengthen number portability as a way to foster competition in the market of public mobile services and fixed telephony services, for the benefit of users.

Telecommunications Infrastructure:

In April 2015, the “Regulation of the Law N° 29022 for Strengthening Infrastructure Expansion in Telecommunications Law” was enacted. This Regulation sets an automatic approval procedure for the emission of authorizations to install telecommunications infrastructure.

Competition in the public mobile services market: 

The Regulation of the Law that establishes measures to strengthen competition in the public mobile services market (Law N° 30083) was approved by Supreme Decree N° 004-2015-MTC, issued in August, 2015. The Regulation seeks to promote the participation of new mobile operators in the Peruvian market through Mobile Virtual Network Operators.


	Financial Services: 

Brokerage firm Regulation

In 2015, the Regulation of Broker-Dealers (Resolution N° 034-2015-SMV/01) was enacted. This Regulation establishes, inter alia, broader possibilities to broker clients to invest in foreign capital markets and more flexible requirements to broker-dealers when they offer their services to foreign clients. This Regulation will be applied since January 01, 2017.



	Website for further information:  
	www.mincetur.gob.pe 
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. Gerardo MEZA (gmeza@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Investment


	Regarding restrictions to foreign investment, there have not been changes since 2011. Peru maintains certain limitations on foreign investments in specific sectors: broadcasting, air and water transportation and notably real estate. In this last case, the constitution establishes limitations in the ownership of various kinds of natural resources within fifty kilometres of Peru’s borders; however these limitations can be waived by decree on case by case basis. Also, no screening mechanisms or performance requirements are applied to foreign investments.

Peru has finalised the negotiation of an Investment Chapter under two major trade agreements: the Pacific Alliance and the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreements. Both agreements represented a liberal framework providing guarantees for a non-discriminatory treatment to foreign investors and their investments, as well as a protection regime.


	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	www.mincetur.gob.pe 
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Vanessa RIVAS PLATA (vrivas@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Standards and Conformance


	By Law Nº 30224 in July 2014, it was created the Quality National System and National Institute of Quality – INACAL. From July 2014 to June 2015 was carried out a transference process .

INACAL is a governing entity and technical high authority of Quality National System, in charge of Standardization, Accreditation and Metrology activities. 

Directorate of Standardization

In 2015, was approved 766 Peruvian Technical Standards, 41% of them correspond to adoption of international standards: ISO, IEC and Codex Alimentarius.

All Peruvian standards are submitted to a public discussion process: 

http://www.inacal.gob.pe/inacal/index.php/servicios/pntp-en-discusion-publica

INACAL has also developed a website which contains Peruvian Catalogue of Standards. This website is:

http://sistemavisitas.inacal.gob.pe:8081/buscador/normas.php

INACAL has been participated in 52 International Technical Committees according to the following detail:

· International Organization for Standardization (ISO): in 2015 INACAL participated in 43 TC, 35 as P-member and 8 as O-member

· International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC): INACAL is participating in the Affiliate Country Program in 4 technical committees.

· FAO/WHO Codex Alimentarius Commission: Peru is represented by the National Directorate of Environmental Health (DIGESA) at the Ministry of Health (MINSA). Further, INACAL has the technical coordination of 5 national technical committees. 

Directorate of Accreditation
With the 3022’s Creation Law of INACAL (National Institute of Quality), the National Accreditation Service turn in to Accreditation Directorate remaining theirs areas such as accreditation of laboratories, accreditation of inspection bodies, product certification, personnel certification and certification of management systems.

INACAL has 81 laboratories, 40 inspection bodies and 07 certification bodies accredited.

Metrology Directorate

The National Institute of Quality, through its Metrology Directorate (DM), represents Peru in the Metrology field at the international level. DM governs Metrology in scientific, industrial and legal fields nationwide.

In addition DM conserves the National Measurement Standards; it diffuses the Peruvian Legal System of Measurement Units and issues Metrologic Certifications with traceability to the International System of Units - SI

Peru, through DM, is member of the International Organization of Legal Metrology (OIML), Inter-American Metrology System (SIM) and it is an associated state of the General Conference on Weights and Measures (CIPM).

Up to now DM has international recognition for its Calibration and Measurement Capabilities (CMCs), in Electricity (Energy and AC / DC), Density, Length, Chemical Metrology, Volume, Time and Frequency, Pressure, Mass and Temperature.    Force, Mass (extension of scope), Liquid Flow and Gas Flow are in process.

The Metrology Directorate of INACAL has 99 CMCs recognized by BIPM.

The Metrology Directorate also provides calibration services for equipment and measuring instruments to the calibration laboratories and the industry when they are required due to the accuracy level and/or indication interval. About 7000 calibrations per year.

The DM offers training courses, internships, and Metrology´s Diploma, having up to now 23 graduates. 
In Legal Metrology has:

· 31 published Peruvian Metrological Standards (NMPs).

· 17 Type Approvals for Water Meters, Electrical Energy Meters and Gas Meters. 

· 32 Type Approvals through homologations 

· 12 recognized companies for performing initial verification of Water Meters, Gas Meters and Electrical Energy Meters.

· Declared National Standards in the following 7 quantities : Temperature, Pressure, Chemistry, Volume, Gas Flow, Time and Relative Humidity

In Chemical Metrology has: 

Several Certified Reference Materials (CRMs) for pH, electrolytic conductivity, metals in water, chemical oxygen demand.


	By the end of 2016, INACAL expects to approve 800 Peruvian Technical Standards. Approximately 43% of them will be adoption of international standards.

In 2016, it is expected to participate in 2 additional International TCs. In this sense, INACAL will be participating in 54 International TCs.

Due to the good results in the previous triannual standardization program, INACAL is working on a national standardization program 2016-2018, which will be approved in the first semester of 2016.

It is planned to extend the scheme of accreditation of certification bodies for management systems (operating with the ISO / IEC 17021) to incorporate the ISO 50001 certification standard. Once implemented the scheme and served an application for accreditation, it can be applied to the MLA with PAC.


	Website for further information:  
	http://sistemavisitas.inacal.gob.pe:8081/buscador/normas.php
http://www.inacal.gob.pe/inacal/index.php/servicios/pntp-en-discusion-publica

www.mincetur.gob.pe
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Rocio BARREDA (rbarreda@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Customs Procedures


	Regarding adoption of HS2017 nomenclature: 


	Regarding adoption of HS2017 nomenclature: 
Since the adoption of the Sixth Amendment of the Harmonized System by the WCO in June 2014, the Customs Administration has been working with its Andean Community partners to update the Andean Community Member Countries Common Nomenclature (NANDINA, for its Spanish acronym) which is the basis for our national tariff, this shall enter into force on January 1, 2017.


	
	Regarding use of IT and automation:
It is important to mention that according to the Peruvian New Customs Legislation, customs declarations shall be made by electronic means and the electronic forms for Customs procedures have been established. Also, Data on Cargo Manifest is sent by electronics means prior to cargo arrival. 
For the 2014-2015 period, Single Window for Foreign Trade (VUCE for its Spanish acronym) has achieved significant progress in the following aspects:
· Concerning its restricted goods component: it began operations in July 2010. Up to date, this component has completed the incorporation of 260 administrative procedures related to foreign trade operations and involves 13 governmental agencies. 
· Concerning its origin component: It began operations in July 2014.  Up to date, there are 19 certificating entities and approximately 5,000 exporters that use this component.

· Concerning its port component: It began operations in March 2015. Up to date, this component has 5 administrative procedures which involve 3 governmental agencies.

Up to date, VUCE has 187 administrative procedures from 8 governmental agencies. In the next stage, it will incorporate 7 agencies, and will add 79 administrative procedures. Currently, according Foreign Trade Agreements, VUCE will adopt measures to achieve interoperability with others SWs.


	Regarding use of IT and automation:
Single Window Development

SUNAT and MINCETUR have been working together to achieve the interoperability between VUCE and the Customs Clearance System, in order to establish the electronic validation of the documents issued through the VUCE to allow clearance of restricted goods.
In the framework of the Pacific Alliance Agreement, VUCE has adopted measures to achieve international interoperability among Single Window Systems of its Member States. The work goes on. 
In 2015, to improve VUCE operations a project called “VUCE 2.0” was designed. The prior objective of this project is to implement a new system that allows performing electronic transactions for all traders and governmental agencies. So this has 4 lines of action: simplification of foreign trade processes and procedures, design of an electronic trading platform, foreign trade information services and knowledge transfer, and change management. VUCE 2.0 development will begin in 2016.


	
	New issues
Since the adoption of the WTO Trade Facilitation Agreement, we have started the legal update to enhance the customs procedures, facilitate trade and improve the supply chain by strengthening its control in order to avoid the smuggling of goods, also taking into account infrastructure, security mechanisms and monitoring of vehicles issues.
The Customs Administration has worked in the development of new procedures and benefits for Authorized Economic Operators, such as a global customs declaration that allows the accumulation of different customs declarations, the release of goods with a minimum of documents, among others.

On the other hand, regarding penalties, sanctions and offenses, the Customs Administration seeks to improve the trade flow on goods and not to delay its production and release, that’s why the penalty related to the "suspension" (cessation of the activities of the company) have been replaced with a fine.

	

	Website for further information:  
	www.sunat.gob.pe
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Gloria RAMIREZ (gramirez@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Intellectual Property Rights


	1) Between 2014 and 2015, Peru organized two seminars on the usage of the plant variety protection system. 
2) The Directorate of Inventions and New Technologies of the National Institute for Defense of Competition and Protection of Intellectual Property (INDECOPI) has created the Sub Directorate of Support for Innovation, which will have as its major role the promotion of the use of the patent system in strategic sectors for economic competitiveness and social development. Creation of Advisory Service Patent and Trademark: Platform physically located in the central premises of INDECOPI where guidance, assistance and free information is available during office users, with respect to issues related to the patent application and system general patent. The service became operational in 2015 and has optimized efficiency in promoting the system due to the principle of specialization discussed above. It has collaborated with increasing coefficient invention of Peru (number of national applications per 100,000 inhabitants) in 2015 0.75 annual average. Between 2014 and 2015 on average anually 275 patent applications were filed by nationals. Annual National Convention of Patents and Inventions (CNAPI): Mega annual event organized in 2014 and 2015 by the INDECOPI as a space that allows the demonstration and recognition of national inventiveness, the encounter and interaction of local agents of invention and innovation, and the promotion of debate and knowledge transfer on the patent system. The 2015 edition CNAPI involved four activities: Exhibition of Inventions Fair, the International Congress of Patents and Inventions, Fair Service Providers and the annual Inventor Recognition Marketing patented invention.   
3) Since 2008, INDECOPI has been carried out a continuously on-site registration of traditional knowledge of indigenous people, which has given as a result 3 472 Peruvian registers to date (among public and confidential registers).
4) INDECOPI established a program to promote collective marks and certificate marks. This, included seminars to create and disseminate the benefits of collective marks, the establishment of pilot products and working together with the producers and public institutions in order to protect the collective marks and generate certificate marks. The collective marks that have been protected include products such as quinoa, fruits and chocolates.
5) To reduce the time of the procedure to register a trademark, the Trademarks Directorate of INDECOPI has implemented a system called “Fast Track”. It has allowed to reduce the time of the procedure from 150 business day to 75 or average.

6) To ease registers of trademarks, the Trademarks Directorate of INDECOPI has implemented a gratuitous advisory service focus on entrepreneurs. It includes: filling applications, phonetic research, figurative research and so on. 

7) Between August and December 2014, it was in operation the Transient Commission of Distinctive Signs, which helped to reduce workload significantly.

8) In 2015, a partnership with the Court of Justice of the Andean Community was formed. The objective has been to promote integration in the Andean Community.

9) In the month of December 2014, it was recognize the ninth Peruvian Appellation of Origin “Aceituna de Tacna” (Tacna Olive).

10) In 2014, it was approved the operation of the Regulatory Council of the Peruvian Appellation of Origin “Café Villa Rica” (Villa Rica Coffee).

11) During this two years, the Trademarks Directorate of INDECOPI has developed various international events with different institutions (Court of Justice of the Andean Community, World International Property Organization).
12) The Copyright Directorate has made ​​available a software tool for users. It will enable them to present registration applications virtually. This is an important contribution to modernization of the state (e-government) thus benefiting creators who live far from the capital city of Peru. During 2015, it has significantly increased the use of virtual application for registration of literary and artistic works and software.
13) From 2015, the Creative Industries Guides are available on the Website of INDECOPI virtually, having generated great expectation among the various creative industries. Additionally, in the process developing new Guidelines on Copyright, or Libraries and guidance sector Copyright Repositories.

14) INDECOPI is in the process of renewal of the agreement with the Ministry of Education to include in the school curricula the issues of copyright protection.

15) The Website LEGAL BUY ORIGINAL has been totally renovated in 2015, with the participation of the Ministry of Production, Sunat and INDECOPI, having enriched the information to guide users in finding music, videos, books and legal software original.

16) In 2015, 6 campaigns have been conducted using legal software computing platform specially designed for it. 23,000 companies have been required to submit software inventory, resulting in an increase in formalizing the use of software in Peru by 18%.

17) In 2015, there has been a training for the members of the newly created Court for Crimes against Customs and Industrial Property, organized by the judiciary, the Commission to Combat Piracy and Customs Crimes and INDECOPI. 


	1) INDECOPI is working in the evaluation of improvements to its online services. Information services, aimed mainly to promote the use of patent documents as a source of technological information for the development of inventive activities.

2) During 2014 and 2015 the Trademarks Directorate of INDECOPI has been working on the promotion of collective marks and certificate marks as a tool for rural development and for the benefit of small entrepreneurs, producers and craftsmen. To do this, in addition to the partnership with AGRO RURAL (agency of the Ministry of Agriculture), a partnership with SIERRA EXPORTADORA (agency of the Ministry of Agriculture), DEVIDA (agency of the Presidency of the Council of Ministers) and APEGA (Peruvian Society of Gastronomy) was formed. The objective has been to facilitate the access of products of rural areas of the country to markets competitively, allowing them to be recognized through collective marks and thus contribute to the joint efforts of producers and increase family income.
3) INDECOPI is planning to continue and expand the training to the Regional Offices of INDECOPI for users living in the countryside, can make use of the tool to register their works virtually.
4) INDECOPI is planning to also incorporate the field of Copyright to the Procedures Management System (IPAS).

5) Workshops are being planned regarding Copyright on the digital environment.

6) INDECOPI is also planning an international event on Copyright and Related Rights on 2017.

7) The Directorate of Copyright is preparing the Manual of Good Practice for the collecting societies, as well as an application for users to calculate tariffs that correspond them to pay for the use of music.

8) The Directorate of Copyright has been developing an application for use on the right to quote.

9) INDECOPI is programming a training for the Decentralized Offices of the Ministry of Culture.

The Copyright Direction is developing guidelines for the application of paragraph f) of Legislative Decree 822 – Law on Copyright – establishing the exception on public loan lawful copy of a work by a library or archive whose activities are not directly or indirectly profit.

	Website for further information:  
	www.mincetur.gob.pe
www.indecopi.gob.pe
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Teresa MERA (tmera@mincetur.gob.pe)
Ms. Angela VIZCARRA (avizcarra@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Competition Policy


	INDECOPI is in charge of implementing competition policy in all sectors, except for the public telecommunications services market, for which the Supervisory Authority for Private Investment in Telecommunications (OSIPTEL) is responsible.

INDECOPI

Legislative Decree 1034, which approves the Law on Suppression of anticompetitive behavior, is modified through Legislative Decree 1205. 

Among the main modifications are:

1. Suppression of cartels’ facilitators
Under the amendment, the law will apply to natural or legal persons who, without being a competitor in the market, act as planners, brokers or facilitators of an offense under cartel absolute prohibition (per se rule).

Officials, managers and civil servants are also included, in what does not correspond to the regular course of their duties.
The existence of these facilitators is, in many cases, determinant in the formation and survival of cartels, by adopting central functions such as exchange or dissemination of information or performing actions for the benefit of the cartel or its logistics organization.

2. Powers in performing competition advocacies
This modification has followed the recommendations of the OECD Competition Committee, reflected in the document “Competition and market studies in Latin America 2015 ", where an individual and comparative analysis of the laws of Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Mexico, Panama and Peru can be found in conducting market researches.

In that sense, the amendment is aimed at the following:

· Definition of the responsibilities of the Commission (article 14) and the Technical Secretariat (article 15) to conduct market research and to promote competition advocacy efforts  
· Capability of the Technical Secretariat to request information in connection with market researches and to sanction the failure to comply with such requirements.
· The obligation of the administrative authorities to which the recommendations are addressed, to analyze and respond to the Commission within a reasonable time
3. Powers of investigation of the examining body

The faculty of the Technical Secretariat of the Commission for the Defense of Free Competition of INDECOPI to request the lifting of the secrecy of communications to gather evidence is expressly established. In this case, it is noted that the power to grant such authorization shall be the Judge in Administrative Matters

4. Commitment to cease
Article 25 of Legislative Decree 1034 has been amended. Essentially, the proposal seeks to replace the rules currently laid down in the Act, which establishes a procedure directed only to the suspension of disciplinary proceedings for less serious conducts, for a system of effective "early termination" of the procedure in cases where the accused officials, voluntarily, provide measures to correct distortions generated on competition and consumer welfare.

The proposal states that corrective measures will be an essential part of the agents offering to apply for approval of a commitment to cease. Being consistent with the objective of protecting competition to promote economic efficiency for the welfare of consumers, these measures will improve efficiency to the decisions of the Commission.

Whereas there is no restriction based on the severity of the behavior subject to commitment to cease, it is consistent to establish that in the event of default, the agents may be subject to sanctions corresponding to serious offenses, i.e., fines up to 1,000 tax units and up to 10% of the gross income of the offender or its economic group.

5. Exemption from penalties
One of the most important changes is for the regime exemption from punishment, called in other jurisdictions Leniency program, of leniency, immunity and collaboration, among others. The proposal has two complementary purposes. On the one hand, it seeks to establish clearer rules on the processing of applications for exemption or reduction of penalty. Second, it seeks to maximize the incentives for economic agents who have engaged in cartels -that means horizontal agreements subject to absolute prohibitions-, to benefit from the leniency system in exchange to work with the Commission and the Technical Secretariat in detection, investigation and punishment of such conducts. This system could even be applicable, under certain circumstances, to other cartels.

The legislative amendment proposes to amend article 26, emphasizing four main points:

(i) The implementation of a system of "markers" or "indicators" to ensure, during a specified period, the order of preference of the applicant, in order to collect and present all the information related to the case.

(ii) Greater accuracy in the specific competences of the Technical Secretariat and the Commission against requests for exemption or reduction of penalty, before and after initiation of a sanctioning administrative procedure and in the procedure, in order to provide predictability to the process and encourage the use of this mechanism.

(iii) The clarification of certain rules concerning the participation of second and subsequent applicants in the program for exemption from punishment.

(iv) The accuracy of the agent who exercised coerce over others to form or maintain a cartel can only access a reduction of the penalty, and not for the total exemption, in order to discourage strategic behavior and destabilize formation cartels.


	1. Increased applications to the Leniency Program, for which the dissemination of the program and the improvement of the rules (development of guidelines) will be continued.

2.  Development of a Guide of Government Procurement and Competition, to guide the organizers and participants of public selection processes, to identify conducts against the rules of free competition and design more competitive processes.
3. Start or termination of disciplinary proceedings in markets linked to the basic family basket or that involves a large number of consumers
4. Make use of the new tools and institutions introduced by Legislative Decree 1205 (for example, the commitment to cease).
5. Competition advocacy activities and development of a Guide for Market Research


	Website for further information:  
	http://www.indecopi.gob.pe/0/home_libre_competencia.aspx?PFL=2  [in Spanish]

http://www.osiptel.gob.pe
[in Spanish]
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Lorena URBINA (lurbina@mef.gob.pe)
	

	Government Procurement


	Peru has a new legislation on Government Procurement which is into force since January 2016. This new legislation is in accordance with international standards and implies more transparency and efficiency in Government Procurement of Peruvian entities. 

Peru has also new agreements on Government Procurement with:

1. Pacific Alliance (Chile, Mexico and Colombia). This agreement has not entered into force.
2. Transpacific Partnership (TPP- Australia, Brunei Darussalam, Canada, Chile, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Singapore, United States and Viet Nam). This agreement has not entered into force.

	According to the procurement law, all procuring entities must publish complete tendering information in Peru`s Electronic Procurement System (SEACE). This electronic platform constitutes the only official single point of access for all procurement information in Peru, containing topics such as: legislation, notices of intended procurement, tender documentation, including technical specifications and evaluation criteria, awarding of contracts, annual procurement plans, business opportunities and statistic information, all free of charge. 

Peru’s Supervisory Organ on Public Procurement (OSCE) is taking significant steps in order to publish main procurement information in English language progressively by electronic means.

	Website for further information:  
	www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe

	www.seace.gob.pe    and    osce.gob.pe

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. Boris GOMEZ (bgomez@mincetur.gob.pe)
	Mrs. Ana Gabriela CHAVEZ (achavez@osce.gob.pe)

	Deregulation/Regulatory Review


	Provide brief points only
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	
	

	Implementation of WTO Obligations/ROOs


	Regarding WTO Obligations:

Peru has actively participated in the WTO's councils, committees and working groups responsible for the implementation and administration of the Multilateral Agreements, with the purpose of ensuring their adequate application. 

In 2014, Peru worked in the fulfillment of its obligations to ensure the entry into force of the Trade Facilitation Agreement (TFA). This work was done within the Preparatory Committee on Trade Facilitation at the WTO.  

· Peru contributed with the legal review of the TFA

· In 24 July 2014, Peru notified its measures under Category A in the TFA.

In 2015, Peru worked in the internal process needed for the ratification of the Protocol of Amendment to insert the TFA into Annex 1A of the WTO Agreement. The review is still under the entities of the National Executive Branch.
In 2014 and 2015 Peru collaborated in the discussions for the preparation of the work program on the remaining Doha Development Agenda issues, as enshrined in the Post-Bali Work section of the Bali Ministerial Declaration.

Peru had a leadership role before and during its participation in the Tenth Ministerial Conference (MC10). Peru’s Ministry of Trade and Tourism attended to MC10 and urged all WTO Members to agree a deal in Nairobi. 

Peru contributed to the final outcome submitting and sponsoring technical proposals individually and as part of the most important groups in the negotiations (Intellectual Property, Agriculture, Cairns Group). These communications were related to the ordinary decisions and negotiation outcomes  on intellectual property and agriculture. 

Peru played a key role in the discussions within the Negotiating Group on Rules related to the elimination of fisheries subsidies that contribute to overfishing and overcapacity. Peru submitted and sponsored technical proposals during 2015 and a draft decision during MC10 in Nairobi.
Peru submitted almost all regular notifications in fulfillment of its WTO commitments. 

In 2015, Peru participated in the Fifth Global Review of Aid for Trade “Reducing Trade Costs for Inclusive, Sustainable Growth”. 

Under the WTO Transparency Mechanism for Regional Trade Agreements, FTAs Costa Rica-Peru and Peru-Colombia-European Union were reviewed by the Committee on Regional Trade Agreements in 2014 and 2015.  

Peru has actively participated in the WTO’s Trade-related technical assistance (TRTA) activities and capacity-building programmes (i.e. TPCs, RTPCs, seminars, workshops, online courses)
Regarding ROOs

Peru has fully implemented the WTO Agreement on Rules of Origin since January 1st 1995, which includes the disciplines to be applied during the transition period until the harmonization work programme under the WTO is completed.

Preferential rules of origin are applied to imports that claim for preferential treatment under free trade agreements. 
Criteria contained in preferential rules of origin, when non originating materials are used, are based on tariff classification changes, national value content requirements, technical requirements or a combination of them. 
Prescribed elements for rules of origin of the WTO Rules of Origin Agreement are incorporated into chapters on rules of origin of the Peruvian free trade agreements.

The non-preferential rules of origin are applied to imports that are subject to antidumping and countervailing duties in compliance with the disciplines set out in the WTO.  The current non-preferential rules of origin applied in Peru are set out clearly in accordance with the WTO. 

In order to improve the regulation related to non- preferential rules of origin, on June 18th 2011 entered into force a rule (Supreme Decree N° 005-2011-MINCETUR) that establishes the procedure to make the declaration of goods subject to trade remedies and to control their origin.

	Regarding WTO Obligations:

In 2016, Peru will ratify the Protocol of Amendment to insert the TFA into de Annex 1A of the WTO Agreement

Peru will work to ensure the implementation of the multilateral decisions agreed in the Tenth Ministerial Conference of the WTO in Nairobi.

Peru is working to submit the pending notifications to the Committee on Agriculture. 



	Website for further information:  
	http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=148&Itemid=166 
http://www.wto.org/english/thewto_e/countries_e/peru_e.htm 

	

	Contact point for further details:
	WTO Issues: Mrs. Victoria ELMORE (velmore@mincetur.gob.pe)  
ROOs: Ms. Jennifer OLORTEGUI (jolortegui@mincetur.gob.pe) 
	

	Dispute Resolution

	Law Decree N° 1231 amending Law Decree N° 1071, Arbitration Act, published in the Official Gazette “El Peruano” on September 26th, 2015.

This amending law has been approved by the Executive under the authority delegated by the Congress of the Republic through Law N° 30336, in order to legislate on public security, and to strengthen the fight against crime and organized crime.

Currently, the Executive has found it necessary to make amendments and additions of rules, in order to take preventive action against crime and organized crime, without distorting the arbitration institution and the registration function, and thus curb or prevent the misuse of arbitration.

	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	http://www.elperuano.com.pe/NormasElperuano/2015/09/26/1292707-1.html
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Sara ROSADIO (srosadio@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Mobility of Business People


	Immigration Law:

During September 2015, the National Superintendence of Migration issued the new Law of Immigration (Legislative Decree 1236). The new law has been designed to implement a more efficient immigration system that will strengthen the economy by promoting natural persons mobility. 

With the new Law, new migratory categories have been created, such as Intra-Corporate Transferees, Short Term Workers (staying in the country up to 30 days), Talent (which includes researchers  and specialists in technology and innovation), Students (which includes trainees), among others.

Also, there is a specific category for Investors which enable investors to stay in Peru up to 365 days with a multiple entry visa.


	Professionals Movement

In the framework of the Pacific Alliance, the Members are working on a new project that seeks to facilitate the movement of professionals across the Pacific Alliance region. 



	Website for further information:  
	www.migraciones.gob.pe
www.rree.gob.pe
www.mincetur.gob.pe
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. Gerardo MEZA (gmeza@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Official websites that gather economies’ information


	Provide brief points only
· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism: www.mincetur.gob.pe 

· Ministry of Economic and Finance: www.mef.gob.pe 

· National Institute for Consumer Defense and the Protection of Intellectual Property (INDECOPI): www.indecopi.gob.pe 

· Website for Peru’s Trade Agreements: www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe 

· Peru Customs Agency (National Superintendence of Customs and Tax Administration): www.sunat.gob.pe 

· Migration Agency (General Directorate of Migration and Naturalization): www.digemin.gob.pe
· Peruvian Agency for Investment Promotion (ProInversión): www.proinversion.gob.pe 

· SENASA (National Service of Agrarian Health): www.senasa.gob.pe 

· DIGESA (General Directorate of Environmental Health): www.digesa.sld.pe 

· Ministry of Production: www.produce.gob.pe
· Supervising Organism of Government Procurement (OSCE):  www.osce.gob.pe
· National Institute of Quality (INACAL): http://www.inacal.gob.pe/inacal/

	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	
	

	Transparency


	The national legislation regarding Transparency has not been subject to changes.
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Sara ROSADIO (srosadio@mincetur.gob.pe)
	


	RTAs/FTAs  



	- Description of current   agreements
	Please use Part 1 of the RTA/FTA reporting template to provide a short description or hyperlinks to any new agreements and to report improvements to existing agreements.  

	
	Agreement #1


	Peru – Singapore

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2009
For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=65&Itemid=88

	
	Agreement #2


	Peru – China

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2010 

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=42&Itemid=59

	
	Agreement #3


	Peru – Korea

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2011

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=80&Itemid=103 

	
	Agreement #4

	Peru – Japan 

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2012

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=90&Itemid=113 

	
	Agreement #5

	Peru – Andean Community (CAN)

· Date of subscription: May 26th, 1969

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=95&Itemid=118

	
	Agreement #6

	Peru – Cuba

· Date of entry into force: March 9th, 2001

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=120&Itemid=143

	
	Agreement #7

	Peru – MERCOSUR

· Date of entry into force: January 2nd, 2006 for Argentina, Brazil and Uruguay and February 6th, 2006 for Paraguay

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=100&Itemid=123

	
	Agreement #8

	Peru – Chile

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2009

For more information: 
http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=70&Itemid=93

	
	Agreement #9
	Peru – Mexico

· Date of entry into force: February 1st, 2012

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=75&Itemid=98

	
	Agreement #10

	Peru – Panama

· Date of entry into force: May 1st, 2012

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=110&Itemid=133

	
	Agreement #11
	Peru – Costa Rica

· Date of entry into force: June 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=115&Itemid=138

	
	Agreement #12

	Peru – Venezuela

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=171&Itemid=190

	
	Agreement #13

	Peru – United States

· Date of entry into force: February 1st, 2009

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=55&Itemid=78 

	
	Agreement #14

	Peru – Canada

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2009

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=60&Itemid=83

	
	Agreement #15

	Peru – European Free Trade Association (EFTA)

· Date of entry into force: 
Peru – Switzerland/Liechtenstein July 1st, 2011

Peru – Iceland October 1st, 2011

Peru – Norway July 1st, 2012
For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=85&Itemid=108

	
	Agreement #16

	Peru – European Union

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=50&Itemid=73

	
	Agreement #17

	Peru – Thailand (Protocol between the Republic of Peru and the Kingdom of Thailand to Accelerate the Liberalization of Trade in Goods and Trade Facilitation and Additional Protocols)
· Date of entry into force: December 31st, 2011

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=45&Itemid=69 

	- Agreements under negotiation


	Please provide information on agreements that are currently under negotiation eg issues being covered in the negotiation and the status of the negotiation. 

	
	Agreement #18

	Trans Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP)

· TPP aims to create a regional FTA involving twelve Asia Pacific countries: Australia, Brunei Darussalam, Canada, Chile, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Peru, Singapore, United States and Viet Nam.  Nineteen rounds of negotiations have taken place since March 2010.  

For more information:

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=188&Itemid=207

	
	Agreement #19

	Peru – Honduras 

· Date of subscription: May 29th, 2015. Not yet in force.

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=135&Itemid=158

	
	Agreement #20

	Peru – El Salvador 

· This agreement is been negotiated since November 8th 2010. Currently, the delegations of both countries continue working to reach an agreement.

	
	Agreement #21

	Pacific Alliance

Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance: 

· Date of subscription: June, 6th, 2012

· Date of entry into force: July, 20th, 2015
Additional Protocol to the Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance:
· Date of subscription: February, 10th, 2014. Not yet in force. It is expected during the first quarter of 2016.
First Additional Protocol of the Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance:

· Date of subscription: July, 3rd, 2015. Not yet in force.
For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=166&Itemid=185

	
	Agreement #22

	Peru – Guatemala 

· Date of subscription: December 6th, 2011. Not yet in force.

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=125&Itemid=148

	
	Agreement #23

	Peru – Turkey

· Peru has initiated negotiations with Turkey on January 20th, 2014. The chapters to be included in the agreement are: Market Access, Rules of Origin, Customs and Trade Facilitation, Trade Remedies, Technical Barriers to Trade, Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures, Trade on Services, Investment, Intellectual Property, Competition, Cooperation and Legal Issues.
For more information:

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=284:inicio&catid=177:inicio-turquia&Itemid=196 

	- Future plans


	

	
	Agreement #24

	Peru –Indonesia 

· Both countries are working on a Joint Study, wich is the previous step for initiaiting negotiations of a Preferential Trade Agreement. 


	
	Agreement #25

	Peru – Nicaragua

· Peru is waiting for Nicaragua’s response to determine if the negotiation will proceed.

	
	Agreement #26

	Peru – Cuba

· Both countries are in the process of establishing contact points.


	
	Agreement #27

	Peru – India 

· Both countries are working to finalize a Joint Study, which is the previous step for initiating negotiations of a Free Trade Agreement. 

	Website for further information:  
	http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/ 

	Contact point for further details:
	Asia and Oceania: Mr. José Luis CASTILLO
jlcastillo@mincetur.gob.pe 
North America and Europe: Mr. Teresa MERA
tmera@mincetur.gob.pe 
Latin America and the Caribbean: Mr. Eduardo BRANDES
ebrandes@mincetur.gob.pe  


	Other voluntary reporting areas


	Provide brief points only
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	
	


� Economies assessed in 2010, on the achievement of the Bogor Goals: APEC industrialized economies: Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand, and the United States, and volunteer developing economies: Chile; Hong Kong, China; Korea; Malaysia; Mexico; Peru; Singapore and Chinese Taipei. 





